
 
 1 

RICHLAND TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 1 

 2 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON SEPTEMBER 10, 2008 3 

 4 

  5 
A meeting was held by the Richland Township Planning Commission on 6 

Wednesday, September 10, 2008, at the Richland Township Hall beginning at 7:00 p.m. 7 
 8 

Members present: Nick Westra, Chairman 9 
   Wanda Hinklin, Secretary 10 
   Walter Calhoun (arrived late) 11 
   Greg Jensen 12 

Trudy Luedecking 13 
John McCann 14 
David Wendzel 15 

 16 
Members Absent: None 17 

 18 
Also present were Township Planning Consultant Russell Wicklund, Township 19 

Attorney Kenneth Sparks and approximately five other interested persons. 20 
 21 
 22 

CALL TO ORDER AND REVIEW OF MINUTES 23 
 24 

The Chairman called the meeting to order and indicated that the first matter to come 25 
before the Planning Commission would be a review of the proposed minutes of the July 30, 26 
2008,  Planning Commission meeting.  Upon motion of Commissioner Hinklin, seconded by 27 
Commissioner Wendzel, the Planning Commission voted unanimously to approve the 28 
minutes as prepared. 29 

 30 

PUBLIC HEARING-SWEEZIE SPECIAL EXCEPTION USE PERMIT APPLICATION 31 
 32 
 The next matter to come before the Planning Commission was a public hearing on 33 
the application of Scott Sweezie of 10875 M-43 in Richland Township for a special 34 
exception use permit to allow the construction of a proposed residential accessory building 35 
upon his aforementioned residence in the area between his house and the abutting road.  36 
The Chairman briefly reviewed the procedure that would be followed in conducting the 37 
public hearing.   38 
  39 
 Mr. Sweezie then addressed the Planning Commission.  He noted that his residence 40 
is lakefront property and that accordingly under the terms of the Zoning Ordinance has two 41 
front yards.  He indicated that he has an existing two-car garage attached to his residence. 42 
 He indicated that he needs additional storage.  He indicated that approximately seven 43 



 
 2 

years ago, he had put a temporary storage structure upon the property, but that this was 1 
not sufficient to meet his needs.   2 
 3 
 In response to a question from the Chairman, Mr. Sweezie indicated that the 4 
proposed accessory building would be a pole barn.  He indicated that he intended to dress 5 
up the gables with split cedar vinyl exterior.  He indicated that the exterior skin of the 6 
building would be metal sheeting since he had discovered that vinyl would be too 7 
expensive.  He indicated that the proposed location for the accessory building was as far 8 
from the south property line as was feasible.  He noted that because of the topography, 9 
there would need to be a 4 foot to 6 foot high poured wall to have the building at this 10 
location.  He indicated that the proposed building would be 18 feet from the south property 11 
line at it closest point.  He noted that the proposed building was an L shaped building.  He 12 
indicated that the main portion of the building would be 30 feet from the south property line. 13 
  14 
 15 
 The Chairman noted that the application erroneously indicated that the proposed 16 
building would have an area of 1,344 square feet, when in point of fact the area of the 17 
proposed building would be 1,744 square feet.  Mr. Sweezie confirmed this error.  The 18 
Chairman noted that the proposed accessory building would therefore also require special 19 
exception use approval because its area was greater than the area of the footprint of the 20 
existing residence on the building, not counting the attached garage.  In response to a 21 
question from the Chairman, Mr. Sweezie indicated that the proposed building would have 22 
a shingled roof, a vinyl soffit and a total of 13 windows.   23 
 24 
 Commissioner Luedecking inquired as to the height of the proposed building.  Mr. 25 
Sweezie indicated that the “bump out” portion of the building would have 10 foot high walls 26 
and the main part of the building would have 16 foot high walls.  He indicated that he did 27 
not know the height of the building at its peak and that he did not know the roof pitch for 28 
the proposed building. 29 
 30 
 Commissioner Luedecking indicated that she had viewed the subject property and 31 
that there is a sharp slope on a portion of the property.  Commissioner Luedecking noted 32 
that the Zoning Ordinance allows a maximum accessory building height of 20 feet at the 33 
building’s peak and that any greater height would require special exception use permit 34 
approval.   35 
 36 
 The Chairman then invited public comment with respect to this matter.   37 
 38 
 Ms. Laurel Luehrig of 10863 M-43 addressed the Planning Commission.  She 39 
indicated that she and her husband lived on the property immediately to the south of Mr. 40 
Sweezie’s property.  She noted that she and her husband had submitted a letter to the 41 
Planning Commission setting forth their concerns with respect to this matter.  She indicated 42 
that she was uneasy about the nature of the additional information that had come forward 43 
at this evening’s meeting.  She indicated that she was concerned that the proposed 44 



 
 3 

accessory building would change the nature of the neighborhood.  She indicated that she 1 
could not see why the proposed accessory building was requested to be located so near 2 
the residences.  She indicated that it would infringe on her living area.  She indicated that 3 
she would like the proposed building to be located closer to the road.  She expressed 4 
concern about the precedent that would be set if the proposed building was approved.  She 5 
also expressed concern regarding enforcement of the rules limiting the use of the building. 6 
 7 
 Ms. Gretchen Thomas of 10845 M-43 then addressed the Planning Commission.  8 
She noted that she had also submitted a letter to the Planning Commission expressing her 9 
concerns with respect to this request.  She noted that her residence is on the lot 10 
immediately to the south of the Luehrig residence. She expressed concerns regarding 11 
aesthetics.  She indicated that the drawing submitted by the applicant was deceptive in that 12 
it seemed to show the approximate distance from the highway for the proposed structure 13 
as being closer to the highway than is actually proposed.  She expressed concern that the 14 
proposed building would be an eyesore and that she would see it out of her front window 15 
on the lakeside.  She indicated that the proposed building is very large and is as large as 16 
some of the houses in the area.   17 
 18 
 Ms. Thomas indicated that she also has boats and other personal belongings, but 19 
that she does not have a 1700 square foot storage building.  She expressed concern as to 20 
the use of a building that large.  She noted that the proposed building would have space for 21 
the parking of three cars plus a workshop area.  She noted that Mr. Sweezie already had a 22 
two-car garage upon his property.  She indicated that most people have workshops that 23 
are within their home and, as such, better insulated as to noise.  She expressed concern 24 
regarding the size of the proposed workshop, possible noise from the workshop and foot 25 
traffic in connection with the workshop and accessory building.  She indicated that her 26 
home is her largest asset and that the proposed building would set a precedent that would 27 
detract from the value of her property.  She indicated that she understood that plat 28 
restrictions are civil law matters rather than Township planning or zoning issues.  She 29 
indicated that there were plat restrictions on the subject property and that she would hope 30 
that the Planning Commission would give consideration as to why those restrictions are 31 
there.  In response to a question from the Chairman, Ms. Thomas indicated that she did 32 
not have a copy of the specific plat restrictions with her and could not recall their specific 33 
provisions.  The Township Attorney indicated that the existence or non-existence of plat 34 
restrictions was irrelevant to the matter before the Planning Commission.  He indicated that 35 
the Planning Commission must base its decision upon the applicable standards set forth in 36 
the Township Zoning Ordinance.   37 
 38 
 The Chairman then asked Commissioner Hinklin to identify and briefly summarize 39 
the letters that had been received by the Planning Commission with respect to this matter.  40 
Commissioner Hinklin indicated that the Planning Commission had received a letter from 41 
Philip and Terri Dawson of 10831 M-43 opposing the request and expressing the opinion 42 
that the proposed building should be closer to M-43.  She indicated that the Commission 43 
had also received a letter from Katherine Gross and Gary Mittelbach of 10815 M-43 44 



 
 4 

expressing the same concerns that had been set forth in the letter from Mr. and Ms. 1 
Dawson.  Commissioner Hinklin indicated that copies of these letters, as well as the letters 2 
from Ms. Thomas and Mr. and Ms. Luehrig, had been provided to each Planning 3 
Commission member.  The Township Attorney inquired as to whether Mr. Sweezie would 4 
like to have the opportunity to review copies of these letters.  Mr. Sweezie responded in the 5 
negative.   6 
 7 
 Mr. Sweezie indicated that he was willing to agree to reduce the size of his proposed 8 
building to 1,165 square feet, which would be the same area as the footprint of his house, 9 
not counting the attached garage.  He indicated that he would propose to eliminate the 10 
existing outdoor storage building on the property.  He indicated that he would agree that 11 
the height of the proposed accessory building would not exceed that which is allowed as a 12 
permitted use in the Zoning Ordinance.  He indicated that he would like to have the 13 
Planning Commission agree at this evening’s meeting that he would be permitted to place 14 
such a building in the area between his house and the road.  15 
 16 
 The Chairman noted that generally the Planning Commission requires a sketch 17 
showing the actual proposal.   18 
 19 
 In response to a question from the Chairman, the Township Attorney indicated that if 20 
Mr. Sweezie revised his proposal in the manner described by him such that no special 21 
exception use approval was required with respect to the height or area of the proposed 22 
accessory building, but only as to the location of the building in the area between his 23 
residence and the abutting road, there would not be a need to hold a new public hearing on 24 
the revised request.  The Township Attorney then reviewed the applicable standards for 25 
special exception use approval set forth in Section 18.C.5.d.1 and the sections referenced 26 
therein. 27 
 28 
 Mr. Sweezie indicated that his property is 604 feet deep.  He indicated that the 29 
proposed accessory building would be 291 feet from the shoreline.  He indicated that there 30 
is a big gulley that limits his ability to put the accessory building closer to M-43.   31 
 32 
 Ms. Luehrig expressed concern that there was nothing in the proposal that would 33 
address possible soil erosion problems.  She expressed concern regarding the proximity of 34 
the proposed building to her living space.  She expressed concern regarding the impact of 35 
the proposed building on the value of her property.  She noted that the Planning 36 
Commission still has not been told what the height of the building would be. 37 
  38 
 Ms. Thomas indicated that if Mr. Sweezie revises his proposal, she believed the 39 
people expressing concerns this evening should be given an opportunity to review and 40 
comment upon the revised proposal. 41 
 42 
 In response to a question from Commissioner McCann, Mr. Sweezie indicated that 43 
the garage door of the proposed accessory building would point towards Mr. Sweezie’s 44 



 
 5 

house.  Mr. Sweezie indicated that he would propose that the accessory building be 1 
located 291 feet from the shoreline and have a 24 foot width.  He indicated that he would 2 
be willing to change the location of the building so as to have it be 22 feet, instead of 18 3 
feet, from the south property line at its nearest point.   4 
 5 
 Commissioner Jensen inquired as to whether Mr. Sweezie knew where the property 6 
line is.  Mr. Sweezie answered in the negative, indicating that no survey had been taken.  7 
He indicated that he did have the original blueprint for his house which shows the location 8 
of the properly line.  Mr. Sweezie indicated that he was aware of two houses in the 9 
Tanglewood Plat that have pole barn buildings upon them.  10 
 11 
 In response to a question from Commissioner McCann as to how stormwater 12 
drainage from the building would be handled, Mr. Sweezie indicated that there would be a 13 
gutter and there would be aerated tubing to handle the water runoff. 14 
 15 
 In response to a question from Commissioner McCann, Mr. Sweezie indicated that 16 
there was no room to push the proposed building further to the north because of the 17 
existing tree line.  18 
 19 
 Ms. Luehrig indicated that she believed there was room for the building to go further 20 
north and that this would not have an adverse impact upon the house on the abutting lot to 21 
the north.   22 
 23 
 Commissioner Jensen indicated that he would like to see a better site diagram.  He 24 
indicated that he was not opposed to the structure if it was placed so as to minimize the 25 
obtrusiveness to neighbors. 26 
 27 
 Mr. Sweezie indicated that the building is not visible from the lake and that when he 28 
looks out his kitchen window, he sees Ms. Luehrig’s roof.   29 
 30 
 Commissioner Luedecking indicated that she believed the Commission needed 31 
more detailed drawings showing the revised proposal. 32 
 33 
 Commissioner Jensen indicated that applicants usually come in with more extensive 34 
information than that provided by Mr. Sweezie.  He indicated it would be desirable that the 35 
diagram show the neighboring home and the building height.  He indicated that some 36 
topography shots might also be desirable. 37 
 38 
 Mr. Sweezie indicated that he was willing to submit better plans, but that he will still 39 
want the proposed accessory building in the general location described by him.  40 
Commissioner Jensen indicated that it was difficult to decide whether or not to approve the 41 
proposed location without having the additional details.  Commissioner Wendzel indicated 42 
that he would like to see the window placement.   43 
 44 



 
 6 

 The Chairman closed the public hearing on this matter.   1 
 2 
 After brief further discussion, Commissioner Luedecking moved that the Planning 3 
Commission table consideration of this matter until the applicant provided new drawings 4 
showing his revised proposal with the details required in the Zoning Ordinance and 5 
discussed at this evening’s meeting.  Commissioner Wendzel seconded the motion.  A 6 
vote was held on the motion and the motion passed unanimously. 7 
 8 
 Commissioner Calhoun then arrived at the meeting. 9 
 10 

DISCUSSION OF PROPOSED BYLAWS ï CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY 11 

 12 
 The Township Attorney noted that he had prepared and submitted to the Planning 13 
Commission revised draft Planning Commission bylaws containing a conflict of interest 14 
policy.  He indicated that this draft had been revised in accordance with the direction given 15 
by the Planning Commission at its last meeting.  16 
 17 
 After brief discussion, Commissioner Luedecking moved that the Planning 18 
Commission adopt the proposed bylaws as submitted.  Commissioner Hinklin seconded 19 
the motion and the motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the bylaws as approved by the 20 
Planning Commission is attached to these minutes. 21 
 22 

DISCUSSION ï ZONING TEXT PERTAINING TO MINI-STORAGE WAREHOUSE 23 

FACILITIES 24 
 25 
 The next matter to come before the Planning Commission was discussion regarding 26 
a possible zoning text amendment pertaining to mini-storage warehouse facilities. 27 
 28 
 The Township Attorney noted that the Township’s Zoning Ordinance currently only 29 
allows “mini-storage warehouse facilities, boat storage facilities or similar uses” as a 30 
special exception use in the C-2 and D zoning classifications and as a permitted use in the 31 
D-1 zoning classification provided no outdoor storage is allowed.  He indicated that there is 32 
no provision allowing such mini-storage warehouse facilities, boat storage facilities and 33 
similar uses in these zoning districts to have outdoor storage.  He indicated that, 34 
notwithstanding this, it had recently been brought to his attention that the Zoning Board of 35 
Appeals had on two occasions granted site plan approval for the Weathervane Storage 36 
facility that included outdoor storage.  He indicated that pursuant to discussions with 37 
Commissioner Hinklin and with Township Planning Consultant Russell Wicklund, he had 38 
prepared for Planning Commission discussion alternative text amendments that would 39 
provide for such facilities with outdoor storage.  He indicated that one alternative text would 40 
have the effect of allowing such facilities with outdoor storage as a special exception use in 41 
the C-2 and D zoning classifications and as a permitted use in the D-1 zoning 42 
classification.  He indicated that the other alternative text prepared by him would have the 43 
effect of allowing such uses without any outdoor storage as a special exception use in the 44 



 
 7 

C-2 zoning classification, but would allow such facilities with outdoor storage as a special 1 
exception use in the D zoning classification and as a permitted use in the D-1 zoning 2 
classification. 3 
 4 
 Planning Consultant Wicklund indicated that he would favor the second alternative. 5 
 6 
 The Planning Commission then engaged in a general discussion regarding this 7 
matter.  At the conclusion of that discussion, it was the consensus of the Planning 8 
Commission that it would be desirable to consider a text amendment that would allow 9 
mini-storage warehouse facilities, boat storage facilities or similar uses with outdoor 10 
storage as a special exception use in the D-1 zoning classification.  No such outdoor 11 
storage would be allowed in connection with those mini-storage warehouse uses located in 12 
the C-2 or D zoning classification.  The Township Attorney was directed to prepare revised 13 
zoning text that would be consistent with this direction.  The Township Attorney indicated 14 
that he would do so and that this text could be reviewed by the Planning Commission at its 15 
next meeting. 16 
 17 

DISCUSSION REGARDING POSSIBLE TEXT AMENDMENT PERTAINING TO SIGN 18 

LOCATION 19 
 20 
 The Township Attorney noted that the Zoning Board of Appeals at its meeting on 21 
August 13, 2008, had discovered in connection with consideration of a sign variance 22 
request that there were a number of discrepancies between existing signage along M-89 23 
and the front yard sign setback restriction in the Zoning Ordinance.  He noted that the 24 
Zoning Board of Appeals had tabled consideration of the variance request and asked that 25 
the Planning Commission consider whether it wished to pursue a possible legislative 26 
approach towards resolving these discrepancies.   27 
 28 
 Planning Consultant Wicklund noted that he had prepared a draft overlay district 29 
zoning text amendment that might be used to address this matter.  He then reviewed the 30 
proposed text amendment.  In the general discussion that followed, the Township Attorney 31 
noted that the current draft language might result in someone putting a new sign on a 32 
vacant lot being able to put it closer to the right of way than an existing nonconforming sign 33 
on abutting property.  After further general discussion, Mr. Wicklund was requested to 34 
prepare revised text that would set a minimum sign setback in the overlay district of 17 35 
feet, but provide that a new sign should not in any event be closer to the right of way than 36 
an existing sign on abutting property.  Mr. Wicklund indicated that he would prepare such a 37 
revised text for further discussion by the Planning Commission at its next regular meeting. 38 
 39 

CONTINUED DISCUSSION ï REGULATING WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS 40 
 41 
 Given the lateness of the hour, the Chairman indicated that continued discussion of 42 
a proposed text amendment regulating wind energy turbines would be deferred until the 43 
next regular Planning Commission meeting. 44 



 
 8 

 1 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 2 
 3 
 The Chairman opened the meeting for citizen comment.   4 
 5 
 Ms. Carol Leeson inquired as to whether anything had ever happened with respect 6 
to the alternative route set forth in the Land Use Plan. Commissioner Hinklin indicated that 7 
MDOT was not interested in pursuing this matter. 8 
 9 

OTHER BUSINESS 10 
 11 
 Commissioner Hinklin noted that there was an upcoming MTA workshop regarding 12 
the new Planning Enabling Act and recent amendments to the Michigan Zoning Enabling 13 
Act.  She indicated that any Commissioner interested in attending the workshop should 14 
notify her of this. 15 
 16 
 There being no further matters to come before the Commission, Commissioner 17 
Hinklin moved that the meeting be adjourned.  The motion was seconded and passed 18 
unanimously. 19 
 20 
 21 
 22 

                                                                23 
       Wanda Hinklin, Secretary 24 

Richland Township Planning Commission 25 



 
 9 

         
RICHLAND TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 

BYLAWS 
 
 The following Bylaws are hereby adopted by the Richland Township Planning 
Commission to facilitate the performance of its duties as outlined in the Planning Enabling 
Act, Public Act 12 of 2008.   
 

SECTION 1:  Officers 
 

A. Selection and Tenure – At the first regular meeting each year the planning 
commission shall select from its membership a chairperson, vice chairperson and 
secretary.  All officers shall serve a term of one year, or until their successors are 
selected and assume office, except as noted in C, below.  All officers shall be 
eligible for re-election for consecutive terms for the same office.  An ex officio 
member of the planning commission is not eligible to serve as chairperson. 

 

B. Chairperson – The chairperson shall preside at all meetings, appoint committees 
and perform such other duties as may be ordered by the planning commission. 

 

C. Vice Chairperson – The vice chairperson shall act in the capacity of the 
chairperson in his/her absence.  In the event the office of chairperson becomes 
vacant, the vice chairperson shall succeed to this office for the unexpired term, and 
the planning commission shall select a successor to the office of vice chairperson 
for the unexpired term. 

 

D. Secretary – The secretary shall execute documents in the name of the planning 
commission and shall perform such other duties as the planning commission may 
determine. 

 

SECTION 2:  Meetings 
 

A. Regular Meetings – The planning commission shall hold not less than four regular 
meetings each year and by resolution shall determine the time and place of such 
meetings.  Other meetings may be held as necessary.  Regular meetings may be 
cancelled by the chairperson or his/her designee if it is determined that there is 
insufficient new or pending business to warrant such meeting. 

 
 Notice of regular or scheduled planning commission meetings shall be posted at the 

principal township office within 10 days after the planning commission’s first 
meeting in each calendar year in accordance with the Open Meetings Act. 

 

B. Special Meetings – Special meetings may be called by the chairperson or upon 



 
 10 

written request to the secretary by at least two members of the planning 
commission.  The business the planning commission may perform shall be 
conducted at a public meeting held in compliance with the Open Meetings Act. 

 
 Written, verbal or electronic notice of special meetings shall be given to the 

members of the planning commission at least forty-eight hours prior to the meeting. 
 Such notice shall state the purpose, time and location of the special meeting and 
shall be posted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act. 

 

C. Public Records – All meetings, minutes, records, documents, correspondence and 
other materials of the planning commission shall be open to public inspection in 
accordance with the Freedom of Information Act, except as may otherwise be 
provided by law. 

 

D. Quorum – Four members of the planning commission shall constitute a quorum for 
transacting business and taking official action for all matters.  Whenever a quorum 
is not present, those present may adjourn the meeting to another time and day, in 
accordance with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act.  No other action shall be 
taken at a meeting at which a quorum is not present. 

 

E. Voting – An affirmative vote of the majority of the planning commission 
membership is required to approve any part of the master plan or amendments to 
the plan.  Unless required by statute, other actions or motions placed before the 
planning commission may be adopted by a majority vote of the membership in 
attendance, as long as a quorum is present.  Voting shall be by voice vote; a roll 
call vote shall be required if requested by any commission member or directed by 
the chairperson.  Except in the case of a conflict of interest, all planning commission 
members, including the chairperson, shall vote on all matters. 

 

F. Agenda – The chairperson or his/her designee shall be responsible for preparing an 
agenda for planning commission meetings. 

 

G. Public Comment. 
 

1. General – No member of the public shall address the planning 
commission without first being recognized by the chairperson. 

 
2. “Citizen Comments” Portion of Agenda – There shall be a time limit of 

five (5) minutes per speaker during that portion of the meeting 
designated on the agenda for “Citizens Comments”.  The 
chairperson shall, subject to being overruled by vote of a majority of 
the planning commission members present, have discretion to 
extend this time limit for an individual speaker for good cause shown. 

 



 
 11 

 

SECTION 3:  Conflict of Interest 
 

A. Planning commission members shall declare a potential conflict of interest and 
abstain from participating in planning commission deliberations and voting on a 
request when: 

 
1. The request for which the planning commission is asked to make a 

decision involves his/her spouse, children, step-children, 
grandchildren, parents, brothers, sisters, grandparents, brothers-in-
law, sisters-in-law, sons-in-law, daughters-in-law, parents in-law, 
grandparents in-law or members of his/her household;  

 
2. The planning commission member has a business or financial 

interest in the property involved in the request or has a business or 
financial interest in the applicant’s company, agency or association; 

 
3. The planning commission member owns or has a financial interest in 

the adjoining property.  For purposes of this section, property 
separated only by an abutting public or private road, street or 
highway shall be deemed an adjoining property; or 

 
4. There is a reasonable appearance of a conflict of interest, as 

determined by a majority vote of the remaining members of the 
planning commission present. 

 

B. Failure of a member to disclose a potential conflict of interest as required by these 
bylaws constitutes malfeasance in office. 

 

SECTION 4:  Amendments 
 
 These bylaws may be amended at any meeting by an affirmative vote of four 
members of the planning commission.   
 
 Adopted by the Richland Township Planning Commission at a meeting on 
___________________, 2008. 

 


